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BA 1771
ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE After 1835
RUXTON
PRIVATE

The small, vernacular style parsonage at St. John's M.E. Church,
Bellona Avenue, Ruxton, is a plain stone, stucco-covered building of
almost primitive qualities, three bays wide with a center entrance.
It is gable roofed with one large shed dormer lighting the upper
story. This building cannot be found in the 1798 tax list and is
very likely an addition to the grounds after the establishment of

a cemetery in 18%3% and a church (of logs) in 1835. Stone buildings
(two) are mentioned in the 1876 tax ledger. This building forms a
link with the original congregation of free men and slaves who
assembled here in 1833. A fire of suspicious nature occurred here in
March 1981, followed two days later by another fire. The roof was
seriously damaged, much of the interior was scorched, and the

rear annex was gutted. The loss was mainly to 20th Century materials
that had been added” to the basic stone rectangular cabin of the
early period.

NOTE: FOR COMPLETE DESCRIPTION AND OTHER SUPPORTING
MATERIALS, SEE SURVEY FORM FOR BA-1559, ST.
JOHN'S M.E. CHWRCH,
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The handsome structure on Bellona Avenue called ®3t. John's Church® is a
fine example of Victorian vernacular church architecture being a board-and-
batten building made decorative by fishscale shingles, stained glass and styl=-
ized lancet-arch windows. Although constructed in 1886, it is not the original
church on this site. The present building replaces an earlier church of unde-
termined dste.

Both the Chiffel map of 1852 and the Taylor map of 1857 indicate a "Coloured
Methodist Meeting House" on tiis site and there is every reason to believe that
blacks have been worshipping here since quite a few years before Emancipation.

In addition to the church building itself the site contains two dwellings
and quite 2 few graves.

What is known locally as a "parsonage® is a small stone house, one room down
and one above with a frame addition on the rear (west). No positive proof of its
age has been found but it is said to be the oldest of the three buildings on the
site and contemporsry with the originsl church. Not the lesst interesting struc-
ture here is a frame bungslow which in its originsl state was a board-and-batten
longitudinally oriented residence very similsr in sppearance and plan to designs
offered by Gervase Wheeler in the 19th century.

4s 2 collection, these buildings and the accompsanying grsveyard are scarce
evidence of the fsct that blacks have been living, working snd worshipping. on
this site for over one-hundred years and prcbably much longer. Before there was
a Ruxton or a Lake Roland this area wss farmed in the manner of a plantation and
these buildings asppear to be testimony to that fact.
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July 2, 1980

Mr. Mark Edwards
Maryland Historical Trust
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401

Dear Mark:

The correct owner of some properties surveyed by
Historic Towson has turned up. For the sites:

BA 1559
—>BA 1771
BA 1772

at 7534 Bellona Avenue, are part of the St. John's Methodist
Church complex. The state tax map does not show the parcel
at all. It belongs to St. John's Church, and tax bills are
mailed to:

Ms. Esther E. Scott
6201 Falls Road
Baltimore, Maryland 21209

The proper deed reference of 1866 is GHL 51:134. None of these
parcels belong to anyone named Hughes.

Sincerely,

T o K

o

JWM:vh ‘ JOHN W. McGRAIN
tExecutive Secretary
Landmarks Preservation Commission
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST

BA - 1771
MAGI - 031771450k

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

BINAME

HISTORIC
Stone Dwelling
AND/OR COMMON
O
BEILOCATION
STREET & NUMBER
Bellona Avsnus
CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Towson — VICINITY OF i
STATE COUNTY
—_— Marylend Beltimore
EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PusLIC X OCCUPIED —_AGRICULTURE —MUSEUM
_BUILDINGIS) L PRIVATE —UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
~ _—STRUCTURE _BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL X PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS
—_OBJECT _—_IN PROCESS _HYES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT  __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED — YES' UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL —TRANSPORTATION
—_NO —MILITARY __OTHER
L ——
EJOWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME - !
: Mary E. C. Hughes Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER
Unknown

CITY, TOWN

— VICINITY OF

STATE, Z1p code

TEILOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Liber #: 5477

COURTHOUSE. Folio #: LSl
REGISTRYOF DEEDR.EIC.  County Courts Building

STREET & NUMBER

CITY. TOWN STATE

Towson

TAREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE

DATE

—FEDERAL _STATE _COUNTY _LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TOWN

STATE
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CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE

—EXCELLENT _%DETERIORATED —UNALTERED Z_ORIGINAL SITE
—.GOOD —RUINS ZALTERED —MOvED  DATEEeh. 1979
—FAIR __UNEXPOSED

-

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Both the Chiffele 1852 and Taylor 1857 maps show a "Coloured Methodist
Meeting House" in this spot along the Old Powder Mill Road (Bellona Avenue).
There are the remmants of a blsck commnity there today, the survivors being
three houses, & church, and s graveyard. A family rents one of the houses,
the church is only used occasionally snd the other two houses are empty and
deteriorating. The graveyard is overgrown snd is disappesringz, While it
seens certain that there was at least & church on this spot in the mid-19th
century (prior to Emancipation) the extant bulldings do not sppear to date
prior to that period., The stone dwelling léoks like the oldest in this group
of bulldings, however, no materials can be seen in it that sre definitely
earlier than the late 1%th century.

Stone Dwellings:

A true one and one half story dwelling with s plan of one room up /
one down with a single room added to the rear (West).

The walls are made of uncoursed brownish fieldstone that hss been stuc-
coed. The stone rises to the apex of the gables. There is a gable-end roof
which has an slmost oversized shed roof dormer. There are no eaves on the
ends and even the sides have only a 10 to 12 inch overhang. While the dor-
mer sppesrs to be original to the present roof its six light casements are
not compatible with the four light casements of the gables. Machine sawn.
rafters and cut and wire nails suggest that if this building is more than 80
or 90 years old its roof hss been changed.

Each end of the building is windowless except for a smell casement win-
dow in each gsble. That of the north is centralized but the scuth window is
off center to the West. It is interesting to note that these deep casements

- are presently mounted on the inside of the opening. The main facade faces

East like ths church. It has three bays to it consisting of s centrally lo-
cated door flsnked by windows. The south window, however, is not sas large as
the north and it may be an alteration. The door and. north window shsre the
same wooden jack arch and the taller north window has a large fieldstone sill,
The west facade is nearly obliterated by the frame shed roofed addition.
Interior exsmination suggests that it once had 2 door on the north side asnd
a single window on the south side of it (original sppearsnce of east facade?).
The single roum downstairs is characterized by the windowless north
wall and the presence of the enclosed stairs on the south wall. A flue chim-
ney occuples the center of the west wall and seperated the door and window,
The original mouldings in this room are a plain architrave that is not
unlike that design seen in some Federal period houses.
It appears that the south window of the esst wall was cut through to
light the stairs. The enclosure of those stairs is not original and one

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Item 7, page 23 Bﬁw/ 77/

wonders what relstionship there is, if any, between this fact aznd the off cen-
ter gable window at the top. The plscement of that window and the protruding

eam on the exterior of the south end could be indicative of s fireplace, how-
ever, the south side would be an odd place for one:

The second level is characterized by its knee walls and trapezoidal ceil-
ing., The room is divided transversely by & psrtition. That well bisects the
dormer which gives each half an east window znd a gable window.

Deterioretion in this aree sllows one to see machine cut laths and parts
of the roof construction. The roof consists of verticelly sawn timbers cut by
machine, Rafters are joined at the top by a ridgeboard snd the trusses are
nailed to flat felse plates in some instances with wire nails. The upper half
of each knee wall is frame.
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Bl SIGNIFICANCE
’_';,F\\
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE ---CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC - COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION
—-1400-14989 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW __SCIENCE
—.1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS — LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 X _ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —-MusIC . THEATER
#4£1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT __PHILOSOPHY —.TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT ——OTHER (SPECIFY)
__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

mid - 19th century

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The handsome structure on Bellona Avenue called "3t. John's Church®
is a fine example of Victorian vernaculsr church architecture being a board=-
and~batten building made decorative by fishscale shingles, stained glass and
stylized lancet-arch windows. Although constructed in 1886, it is not the
originel church on this site. The present building replaces an earlier
church of undetermined date. (See BA # 1559)

Both the Chiffel map of 1852 and the Taylor map of 1857 indicste a
"Coloured Methodist Meeting House® on this site and there is every rsason to
believe that blacks have been worshipping here since quite a2 few years before
Emancipation.

In addition to the church building itself the site contains two dwellings
and quite a few graves.

What is known locally as a ®parsonage® is a small stone house, one room
down and one above with a frame addition on the rear (west). No positive proof
of its age has been found but it is said to be the oldest of the three build=-
ings on the site and contemporary with the original church. Not the least
interesting structure here is sz frame bungalow which in its originsl state was
a board-and-batten longitudinally oriented residence very similar in appear-
ance and plan to designs offered by Cervase Wheeler in the 19th century.

As a collection, these buildings and the accompanying graveysrd are scarce
evidence of the fact that blacks have been living, working and worshipping on
this site for over one-hundred years and probably much lenger. Before there
was a Ruxton or a Lake Roland this area was farmed in the manner of a planta-
tion and these buildings appear to be testimony to that fact.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY




BA-1771

FJMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES .

Baltimore County Land Records
Beltimore County Tax Assessment Records

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

FJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

See Attechment

STATE COUNTY

UIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES /

STATE . COUNTY

EE1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE

. WAYNE . NIEID 1

ORGANIZATION HISTORIC TOWSON, INC. DATE

STREET & NUMBER ) TELEPHONE

CITY OR TOWN STATE

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.
RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust

The Shaw House, 21 State Circle

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

(301) 267-1438

PSs- 1108




Tax Assessments

1876 Tex Assessment Record for Baltimore County District 9

5t. John's Methodist P. Church

Tract of land E. Side N.C.R.Rd4. near Lake Roland

1 acre, lefs {less) church occup.

Improvements = 2 small stone houses.

BA-1771




LISER

TOLIO

5t. Johns Caarch/

2oloured Metnodist Mesting House S3ite

DATE

5477

g3

53k

98

L4535

u33

431

Seotember 9, 197U

JRAITOR

tlary ISdvbnuls Huzrnes

BA~177]

GAlTEE

Jary kdytn S, Huzhes
‘“homas John Jurhes

0t # 2 on Plat a1 !"ontrose...nortteast side o M'artaern Zentral
Rail Road with Lhe northwest side of public roasd...northwest
bindinz on Rail vad...3suth 22 3Zast line of wudle tract of land
..ereversing ...2h - A5/100C perches to a stone...lortn 85 3/4°
BEast 5% perches to nowthwest side of roasd...soutkesst on road

till bezinning...? 2ecres, 1 rood and 183 square perches.

60

212

59

L77
109

365

January 15, 1958

iovemher 18, 1920

November 15, 1920

April 5, 1918

December 29. 1915

July 21, 191

January U, 186l

WH1llism T. Mckewen

“harles J. Bouchet

‘Hlliam 7. YMockewen

James . Tarman

James . Finman

Iridset Roddy
(Finman's doughter)

James L, llcDaniel

HMory B. C. Hughes
William ¥, “ckewen- % wr
Charles J. Bouchet
deary % Willianm Yekewen

sary Aldred “right
{als2 Yelen Mckewen

Halen ‘ckewen

uen Finman
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ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE BA 1771
Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981
Neg. located at MHT

Main or east facade from east
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ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE BA 1771
Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain, April 1, 1981
Neg. located at MHT

South gable end from south
Phote—9—of 42







ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE BA 1771

Baltimore County, Maryland

J. McGrain April 1, 1981

Neg. located at MHT

South gable end; rear; burned-out
annex; from SW
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ST. JOHN'S PARSONAGE BA 1771

Baltimore County, Maryland

Je. McGrain April 1, 1981

Neg. located at MHT

Interior; charred laths on south
wall near stairs
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